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CHAIR BAISA: . .(gavel). . . Will the Water Resources Committee meeting please come to
order. Today is Wednesday, February 17, 2016 and it's just a couple minutes after
9:00 in the morning. Before we get started I'd like to ask everyone to please put their
cell phones on the silent mode and I'll do that too so that we will not be interrupted. I
am Gladys Baisa, the Chair of the Water Resources Committee. And my members that
are here today this morning, I have Robert Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Mr. Carroll. I have my Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: And my...and I have Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: And Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: And excused at the moment my Vice-Chair, Mike Victorino. And he is away
and will not be able to join us today. And we expect Council Chair White to join us
shortly. He's excused for the moment. There are two non-voting members of this
Committee and neither of them is able to be here today with us and that's Riki
Hokama and Don Guzman. From the Administration we have Dave Taylor, the
Director of Water Supply.
MR. TAYLOR: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. And we have Jennifer Oana, our Deputy Corporation
Counsel.
MS. OANA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. And also joining us today will be Robert De Robles, who is
the long range planning person from the Department of Water Supply, welcome. And
our Committee Staff, we have Kim Willenbrink, our Legislative Analyst.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. And we have Clarita Balala, our Committee Secretary. And
again, we are very grateful for our Staff. They keep things moving around here and we
couldn't do it without them. In our District Offices we have Denise Fernandez on
Lanai, Ella Alcon in Molokai, and Dawn Lono in Hana. Members, we have two items
on our agenda for today. And first it'll be Ag rates for CTAHR and then the
Department is going to give us a presentation on its leak detection program. And I am
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real excited to hear this presentation. All of us remember when we were in budget,
that there was a request for funding for this leak detection unit and we'll get a report
on what they're doing and how they're doing so it'll be really, really interesting. I'm
gonna begin the morning this morning by taking public testimony, Members, with no
objections.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Testimony will be limited to the item on our agenda today and if
you wish to testify, please sign up at the desk in the 8th floor lobby or at one of the
District Offices. Testimony will be limited to three minutes. At two and a half minutes
the light will turn yellow and at three the light will blink red. If you're still talking
when that red light goes off, I'll kindly ask you to stop. When testifying, please state
your name first and if you are representing a group, we'd like to know that too. We
have established a connection to the District Offices and to be fair, we will rotate
through each of the sites. We'll begin here in the Chamber. The Lanai Office, Denise
Fernandez, do you have anyone wishing to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Denise, and thank you very much. In the Molokai Office we
have Ella Alcon. Ella, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Ella. In the Hana Office we have Dawn Lono. Dawn, is there
anybody wanting to testify?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR BAISA: Thanks so much, Dawn. Ms. Willenbrink, will you call our first testifier in
the Chamber please?

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes. Thank you, Madam Chair. Right now we have two testifiers signed
up. The first testifier is Cindy Reeves, followed by Warren Watanabe.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Ms. Reeves.
MS. REEVES: Good morning, Committee Chair Baisa and Councilmembers. And thank you
for this opportunity to request your support for the passage out of Committee of this
amendment to the Maui County Code. My name is Cindy Reeves and I am the Maui
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County Administrator. As you are aware, our Ag Research Stations had their Ag water
rates rescinded last year essentially because we were not producing farm income as
was stated in the Maui County Code. However, this is not the purpose of our
Research Stations, rather, they serve the County and its farmers by conducting
varietal trials at different growing elevations and environmental conditions; conducting
research on remediation of pests to edible crops; growing germ plasm for the
developing export market, conducting beginning farmer programs on Molokai and
Lanai, and offering field days to farmers to learn the results of this research and gain
skills and techniques that they may apply to their own crops. I ask for passage of this
change in the Maui County Code so CTAHR may retain its Ag water rates in support of
all of these efforts being conducted in support of Maui County's agricultural industry.
Thank you so much for your support.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Ms. Reeves. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Any need to clarify?
Seeing none, Ms. Reeves, thank you very much.
Ms. Willenbrink?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes. The final person in the Chamber signed up to testify is Warren
Watanabe.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning, Chair Baisa, Members of the Committee. I am Warren
Watanabe, Executive Director of the Maui County Farm Bureau. The Maui County
Farm Bureau strongly supports WR-15 authorizing agricultural rates for water use at
UH CTAHR Experiment Stations. CTAHR Experiment Stations serve as a critical
connection between research and farms. Theoretical concepts developed by
researchers turn to practical production practices by extension agents so farmers and
ranchers can improve their productivity and viability. New crops and varieties,
irrigation practices, and pest control are some of the important functions by the
experiment stations. For example, the recently introduced painted stink bug is
creating havoc among our crucifer growers. The extension agents are developing
control measures for the various impacted crops. The diamondback moth is a major
pest in all cole crop growing areas. Testing for control measures are done at the ag
park. The Experiment Stations are critical to the development of Maui's agriculture.
The use of agricultural lands for this purpose is recognized in State law. Qualifying
these areas for agricultural water rates is a natural progression to State law. We
respectfully request your support in authorizing agricultural water rates for CTAHR
managed properties used for agricultural experimentation and demonstrations. The
rates should be set equal to those provided to commercial agricultural users. Thank
you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, any need to clarify the testimony? Seeing
none, Mr. Watanabe, thank you.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Willenbrink?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Madam Chair, there's no one waiting to testify in the Chamber. Did you
want to check one more time in the Districts?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes, please.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Hana Office, is there anyone signed up to testify? Hana?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you, Dawn. Lanai Office, is there anyone waiting to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you, Denise. And, Molokai Office, is there anyone waiting to
testify?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you, Ella. There does not appear to be anyone else waiting to
testify, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Is there anyone else in the Chamber who would like
to testify? Seeing no one approaching the podium here, we have no one in the District
Offices wanting to testify and no one in the Chamber who has not testified. Members,
without objection I'd like to close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. So ordered.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

ITEM 15:

AGRICULTURAL WATER RATES FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF
HAWAII COLLEGE OF TROPICAL AGRICULTURE AND
HUMAN RESOURCES (CTAHR) (CC 15-297)

CHAIR BAISA: Members, our first item today is WR-15 and it's Agricultural Water Rates for
the University of Hawaii College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources, better
known to us as CTAHR. The Committee is in receipt of County Communication
15-297, from myself, transmitting a proposed bill entitled A Bill for an Ordinance to
authorize Agricultural Water Rates for Properties Owned, Operated, or Managed by the
University of Hawaii College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources. The
purpose of the proposed bill is to authorize agricultural water rates for properties
owned, operated, or managed by University of Hawaii's College of Tropical Agriculture
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and Human Resources. We are here today to try and make a decision on this. It's
very important. And I'd like to ask our Director of Water Supply, Dave Taylor, for any
comments. Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Madam Chair. The Department supports this bill and let me say
that this is...CTAHR is basically caught in some, what I call sort of some housekeeping
within the ordinances. The general provisions in Chapter 14.01 define an agricultural
consumer as someone who has a minimum gross income of $1,000. So that's
basically who qualifies for ag rates. You have to make $1,000. Under 14.10.015
Waivers, it allows a charitable organization who donates $1,000 to also qualify. Those
are essentially the rules that we're stuck with in the Department. CTAHR doesn't fit
either of those categorizes. We certainly recognize that the work they're doing is doing
research for agriculture in an educational way but it doesn't fit the ordinance. So if
the ordinance is changed as proposed, they would be exempt, we would have no
problem with that. But under the current ordinance we don't really feel that we have
the authority to grant them a waiver because the reasons for waiver are also pretty
clear. Just from a numbers standpoint, they use about 150,000 to 200,000 gallons of
water every month. Their annual rates if they get ag rates are about $4,000 and if
they don't get ag rates, are about $12,000. So it's about an $8,000 difference to them.
And again, we do support this. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Taylor. Members, floor is now open for questions.
Any questions? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Taylor, you said this happened
because of a housekeeping thing you went through?
MR. TAYLOR: Maybe housekeeping isn't the right word. The ordinance was written with this
idea that $1,000 of revenue or $1,000 of donation is the trigger to be called an
agricultural consumer. The ordinance doesn't say anything about providing education
in the fields of agriculture, etcetera, etcetera. And it doesn't give any leeway to the
Director to use discretion. So from that aspect, it's sort of housekeeping for the sense
that it's my belief that if this had come up when this bill was written, somebody would
have probably written, you know, experimentation or education activities relating to
agriculture if there is no money, would probably have been written in.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And when was this bill written?
CHAIR BAISA: I was here so it can't be that long ago.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah. Or maybe it is a long time ago when you consider I'm in my tenth year
here. I would say, in the last three or four years, it's not that long.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay that's...
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CHAIR BAISA: It was a very heavy discussion about what that threshold would be. You
know, and the $1,000 was kind of a compromise because we had to use something.
And so we used what the farm people throughout the country use. It's a national
standard. Because we tried everything. We started with 75,000 and we went to
50,000 and we were at 5,000. And there was discussion, so much discussion we
finally decided to take the national standard which was 1,000. But nobody talked
about exempting this kind of activity at the time that it happened. And I think that's
how it was overlooked. And so I think this is more like the Director is saying,
housekeeping. I think it was just an oversight at that time because we were so
embroiled in how much that we didn't think about, you know, any more exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I guess, Mr. Taylor or Ms. Baisa, whoever has this answer.
Is was this...you did national standards for the $1,000, what about national standards
for the same types of things, educational and experimentation? Did you look at that?
See if that's done nationwide?
CHAIR BAISA: I don't remember us talking about it at all, maybe the Director does. And
unfortunately, my Vice-Chair who was Chair of the Committee isn't here today. But
he might remember.
MR. TAYLOR: It happened before my time but...so I don't...no one on staff really recalls,
other than as Chair Baisa recollects. The focus was on the dollar value, not on
non-dollar value activities that people wanted to encapsulate. So I think it was
probably just an oversight that no one thought about an educational activity as
being...needing to be wrapped up in this ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And last question, Madam Chair. So with this, the way
this ordinance is written, then subsistence farmers do not get ag rates, is that correct?
MR. TAYLOR: Under the current ordinance, unless they were...no they would not qualify
under this ordinance for ag rates. No they would not.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And how...I said that was my last question. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay, Mr. Couch. Members, any other questions? Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I think Mr. Couch brings up a
good perspective in the sense about on the national level or in other municipalities
whatever, within even our own State, I guess. How do they address experimental
research type facilities on ag lands and are they getting ag rates or not. I know that
University and Farm Bureau are speaking towards the State law which for them
qualifies them to receive ag rates on such land. So I think that line of questioning
deserves an answer or some kind of comment.
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Cochran, it's possible that we have some folks in the audience who might
be able to help.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think Mr. Taylor...
CHAIR BAISA: Do either of our farm... does our Farm Bureau person know? Or, Cindy, do
you know? Members, I'd like to call one of them down to answer the question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair?
CHAIR BAISA: I know they're familiar with what's going on nationally. If you would, please?
Members, no objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or within the State also. Just in our own State. If there's
practices -CHAIR BAISA: Maybe she can help us.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in other counties.
MS. REEVES: That's a very good question.
CHAIR BAISA: Would you identify yourself please?
MS. REEVES: I'm sorry, this is Cindy Reeves. I am the Maui County Administrator for U.H.
Manoa, CTAHR. I don't know the answer for the national level. I do know that when I
was in Cooperative Extension at the University of Maryland, our farm facilities did get
ag rates there. I don't know whether it was a function of state law or county ordinance
at that time. But I know that in Maryland that we had a number of farm facilities
across the state. I'm not sure if somebody else can speak to the national picture.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But what about State? Within this State and other counties,
do you know the answer to that?
MS. REEVES: I don't know the answer to that because I know that we're the only ones that
had ag rates that were rescinded and I don't know of the other counties, if they've been
in a similar situation. As far as I know, they're receiving ag rates. But again, I'm not
sure if that's specific to their counties or is relating back to the State law. In Maui we
were fine, you know, we had ag rates for a while and then it wasn't until they became
rescinded that it became an issue. But I could certainly look into that and find more
information for you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And...but sorry.
CHAIR BAISA: Go ahead, Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mister...Director, did you have...you're like kinda getting
towards your microphone
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Reeves, if you can wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Taylor, any comments?
MR. TAYLOR: Nationally I would just say that everyone I've talked to across the nation, we're
sort of on the leading edge of potable water systems for agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh yeah, that's right.
MR. TAYLOR: In fact the Upcountry system where roughly half of the water goes out for
agricultural rates. I have been unable to find any other utility manager who has
anything close to that. You know, usually agricultural use from potable water is such
a small amount that frankly their utility managers can't believe it when I tell them that
roughly half of our potable water on our system, goes for agriculture. So I don't know
that we're gonna really find answers somewhere else when we're in such a unique
situation.
CHAIR BAISA: That probably explains to me why I don't remember us discussing it. What
we did discuss nationally was the idea of the $1,000 and how much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And you had a question?
CHAIR BAISA: You're done, Ms. Cochran, for now?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For now. I mean while Ms. Reeves is here -CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --we'll get the questioning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. While Ms. Reeves is here. So you're talking about State
law, now what does the State law say that you're referring to?
MS. REEVES: I don't have that in front of me. I believe Warren referred to it in his
testimony. He might be the person to ask -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. REEVES: --that clarification from.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: We'll call Mr. Watanabe up. Ms. Crivello, did you wanna talk to Ms. Reeves?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay go ahead. We'll get Mr. Watanabe up while we take your question or
you wanna wait? You'll wait? Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But maybe Mr. Couch can address Warren.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He's up already. Yeah so...
CHAIR BAISA: Mister, your name please, so we get it on the record.
MR. WATANABE: Okay it's Warren Watanabe.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, Mr. Watanabe, in your testimony you talk about the use
of agricultural lands for this purpose is recognized in State law. Which...are you
talking 205 and where in 205 is that?
MR. WATANABE: Yes I think that's the section that deals with agricultural land use. I think
what we're trying to address here too is that, you know, for agriculture, you know, at
times, you know, we do get like, you know, I know on State lands they don't get
assessed like, you know, property taxes. And I think that's what we're talking about.
The overall general benefit where the State implements things that will benefit
agriculture in general. And again, it deals with the land use issue. And so, you know,
I think, you know, when you talk about this kind of benefits I think, you know, for us
as farmers and ranchers it is critical because, you know, when I was farming...Ill use
myself as an example. When I was farming and I would be interested in developing,
growing a new crop, I did the research on my farm. And that research will take you at
least couple years because you have to understand what your market capacity is,
what your cost of production is, whether you will generate a profit out of that crop.
And that's what I think a lot of people don't understand about agriculture. You need
that time to develop a new crop. And by giving the experiment stations the ability to
do that for the whole industry really saves the farmers and ranchers a lot of time and
expense. I don't know if that quite answers your question, but.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That...it comes close. The issue is where in...but you're saying
in 205 it recognized this activity as a bona fide agricultural activity? Okay, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Anybody have any more questions for Mr. Watanabe while he's up here?
Thank you very much.
MR. WATANABE: Okay thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Don't go too far if we need you again, thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. So I, you know, should you take into
consideration to recommend passage, I would support passage on this. You know,
first of all they're using agricultural lands. But on a side point I'd like to ask the
Director, why is it that we don't have or are we able to utilize ag water? We're using
potable. Do we have...I guess we don't have ag water. Is... can you -CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Taylor?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --clear that?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct, Member Crivello. We...where we have non-potable water in the
County is very limited. And so the potable water system as everyone knows, is far
flung, it goes to a lot of places. So essentially when people are wanting to farm, the
only water system available much of the time is the County potable water system. If
everyone farmed along irrigation ditches or along recycled water pipes or things like
that, there would a different solution. I think one of the difficulties the Upcountry
community has with farming is that in most of the country farming is along irrigation
ditches, it's along non-potable water transmission systems. And in our Upcountry
region a lot of the farming is here and there and the only real way to serve it is with a
pressurized system that can go to various elevations which is the potable system.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know, the way I look at it...thank you for bringing this
forward because I'm sure it happens here too but I know back home we depend on
CTAHR for all of their expertise. And actually for grooming farmers, you don't have to
go to a nonprofit to... organization to help mentor and groom farmers, CTAHR does all
of that. And I think we sort of should utilize them more in that sense, as to what they
bring.
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Crivello, if you don't mind I'd like to note the presence of Council Chair
Mike White. Welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not at all, thank you. So that being said, I would like to see
passage of this bill. Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. You know, I can give some personal testimony. You
know, my husband's a backyard farmer and lots of times he has to deal with issues
like what kinda seeds to plant, what do they need, what kind of fertilizer you need,
what kind of pest control you need. And that's always available through CTAHR.
They are really helpful in many, many ways. So I think a lot of our long-time local
families know about them and I'm sure that our new farmers and we have a whole lot
of new farmers that have come to Maui are also aware of CTAHR's capabilities. And so
I personally would like to support them. But again, this is a...this involves money.
It's a small amount of money but I think more than the money is the fact that, you
know, we always say we wanna support ag and this is a real concrete way to support
it. Any further questions? Any more discussion? Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think she had her hand up first.
CHAIR BAISA: Why don't we let Ms. Cochran go and then we'll get...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You just got here. Oh, okay, thank you. And so, Chair, I'm
just trying to figure out if there's a way to write this so it's not just allowing one
particular entity. What if other people come along and wanna do, you know,
something and they're not really producing but they're on the research, experimental,
educational, grooming farmer level also. But they're not called CTAHR or they're not
part of U.H. So, you know, I think there's gonna be...maybe that's the wrong word,
discrimination, but, you know, I'd like to...if we're gonna do this then let's make it
open for everyone across the board.
MR. TAYLOR: Member Cochran, that's something we thought about. And I opened by saying
we supported this. If there were three or four or even one other that had been in the
same situation, we probably would've needed to change the language to try to catch
them too. To our knowledge, these are the only ones that fit into this category. It just
seems more practical to put their name in rather than do, define a category that it
seems historically at this point, no one else is going to be in that category. So we're
fine with this now and if it turns out others come in, we would certainly be more than
willing to try to come up with some language that encapsulated all of them. But to
our knowledge they're the only ones and it just seems again, more practical just to
write them an exemption rather than to try to figure out a more general definition.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And in the U.H. testimony it does state that they're
having financial difficulties therefore trying to get this, you know, better rate for
themselves. And they're saying that they could be cutting out County services
because of the flat budgeting and whatever that's going down. So again, they may not
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be even there or the only...so I'm just saying because you've got subsistence farmers
that Mr. Couch mentioned, they're not subsidized. You know, I mean I know people
who are doing their own research, experiments and stuff growing...I'm doing that
myself. I don't get ag water rates at my mother's home, you know, in Lahaina. People
that work for me, they create home lotions and products that they hand, you know,
home grow their ingredients and doing experiments and stuff. So can they get ag
water rates? You know, I know this is focusing on the Kula Ag Park but I mean this
can set precedence that open the door for others to go oh wow, what about me, what
about me?
MR. TAYLOR: Actually, Member Cochran, although they have a lot at the Kula Ag Park, the
Kula Ag Park is irrigation water. And that's already covered under the Kula Ag Park
rules. So no one has to pay potable rates if they're using water at the Kula Ag Park.
This is for their site that isn't in the Kula Ag Park. So as far as your other issues, if
the Council under another item wants to take up the general definition of agricultural
consumer which does include this $1,000 limit and wants to change that, you know,
the Department will be more than happy to be part of that discussion. I would note
that the Board of Water Supply independently recommended some changes to the
costs and they came up with their own bill and that has been transmitted to Budget
and Finance, Chair Hokama's Committee for discussion. So there are ongoing issues
about what is an agricultural consumer. Obviously that's not what's on the agenda
today but we'll be more than willing to be part of that discussion if the Council feels
it's something that should be changed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And you said this is not on the agricultural, Kula Ag
Park site itself. Where is it exactly?
MR. TAYLOR: CTAHR has three water meters. One of them is in the Kula Ag Park itself and
that is subject to the agricultural water rates that Kula Ag Park users pay. Then they
have two others in Kula, at their site. One I believe is for their farm operations and
the other is, I think, for their office operation. That seems to be the numbers. The big
one is this 150,000 to 200,000 gallons a day usage in Kula. That is really what this is
about. It's really about that meter. The other meter is such a small use it doesn't
even...because the first couple tiers of general meters are the same as agricultural
meters and it doesn't trigger the agricultural rates. So it's really this one meter in
Kula that is using 150,000 to 200,000 gallons a day that is really what this is about.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which is not even in the Kula Ag Park?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct, it's not in the Kula Ag Park. The one in the, their site in the
Kula Ag Park gets those.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, right. Okay. I mean that even opens up the door and
sort of can bigger because of that statement that you just made.
MR. TAYLOR: I would only say that other than people in the Kula Ag Park, all agricultural
consumers all across the County on the potable water system get agricultural water
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rates. This would just create an item so that CTAHR would be considered an
agricultural consumer like the the other agricultural consumers who get agricultural
water rates.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That aren't doing agriculture for, as an income though?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: Well I'm sorry, I'm sorry. I'm...the way the ordinance is written, agricultural
consumer is by definition someone who does agricultural for $1,000 or a charitable
donation of $1,000. That is the definition. So what this does is create a special
circumstances, special circumstance for CTAHR that even without the $1,000 of
income or $1,000 of charitable donation, they will essentially be an agricultural
consumer. So they would be the only ones.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thanks for your explanation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. And I'm not sure, maybe Mr. Chair
White would know the question but I believe we fund CTAHR to a certain extent. I
don't know how much it is compared to what the State funds.
CHAIR BAISA: We've funded them a small grant for many years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just about 40 or...
CHAIR BAISA: And Ms. Reeves probably can tell us.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: We'll get her down here again, if you don't mind.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: She's gonna get her exercise.
CHAIR BAISA: They count on us big time.
MS. REEVES: Yes, no. We really do appreciate the County's support.
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CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Reeves, please again state your name before you talk, just for the record.
MS. REEVES: Yes. I'm sorry. This is Cindy Reeves. I am the Maui County Administrator
and we really do appreciate the support of the Council. This year the amount that we
were awarded by Council was $40,000. This coming year the Council increased that
to $100,000. Those funds are specific to programs. So those funds go to support
expanding the programs. They don't go to support any of our operating budgets at all.
And so that's kind of the difference between...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And here I am channeling Mr. Hokama again. What is the
State...how much of your funding does the State provide?
MS. REEVES: Ninety-seven percent of our funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ninety-seven. So the $100,000 is 3 percent of your funding?
MS. REEVES: About that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh wow.
MS. REEVES: Yes. So it's very small. The State provides 97 percent and the majority of that,
about 86 percent is tied up in salaries.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And as Mr. Taylor said, you're the only entity that does
something like this right now, is that correct?
MS. REEVES: That's correct, as far as I know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That's all I have for her but I have some questions for
Mr. Taylor.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay, Ms. Reeves. Anybody else need Ms. Reeves while she's up there? If
you don't mind, if you'll take a seat and kinda stay with us please, until this is done.
Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So my question, I kinda agree with Ms. Cochran as far as,
maybe we should do this in all-encompassing kinda language to somebody who wants
to do a...I mean we have to figure out how to make it a research facility only because
with the news about HC&S, et cetera, and there's gonna be openings of a lot more
potential ag lands. And somebody may want to start doing their research as a group
as well. I'm fine with passing this out right now but maybe we should come back and
take a look at some sort of thing to include somebody else that might wanna do this
as...not necessarily as an adjunct to their farming but as you heard Mr. Watanabe
say, he used to do it himself. And if CTAHR goes away I just don't like having to go
through, you know, we're gonna to do it for CTAHR right now and then eventually
some other time, we may do it for somebody else. Let's try and get it all at once but...
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CHAIR BAISA: We can definitely look at that. You know, I suspect that this Council is
gonna be embroiled in a lot of legislation that is involved with farming and agriculture
in the months ahead as we go through dealing with the change in the way the island
looks right now, and I think there'll be a lot of activity. We can handle it at that time if
you wanna make some kind of blanket or a bigger allowance. Today's legislation of
course is targeted only at CTAHR. Chair White is trying to say something,
Ms. Crivello, then I'll get to you. I see him trying to get my attention.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think Ms. Cochran brings up a good concern but I think at the
same time that the bill before us takes care of the one issue that's been brought to us.
And I think all of us would be comfortable that if somebody else comes to us -CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --with a similar proposal and similar concerns, we'll be willing to
make an exemption there. But I think if we make the language too broad, we're gonna
have a whole lot of people jumping on and saying this is what I do, this is what I do,
this is what I do. And the Department's gonna be left in a position of having to sort
through it all and I just don't think that's necessarily the right thing to do at this
point. But as things begin to develop before us, I'm open to coming back and
providing additional exemptions if it seems appropriate.
CHAIR BAISA: Warranted. Thank you very much, Chair. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Going off on that, you know, I understand where Mr. Couch
is coming from and I think we need to address it at the time. And, you know, I
may...I'm gonna say I advocate for CTAHR. It's not something that somebody just
created today. It's been...they've been in existence -CHAIR BAISA: From when I was a child.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I would have to say for gotta be over 60 years.
CHAIR BAISA: Older.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Probably more. So I think too, when we are going to or when
we may consider other entities to...for us to sort of blanket them into this kind of
ordinance is we've gotta check on its credibility, you know. We talk about HC85S going
through its transition and in the conversation with trying to find resolves for what's
the next step, there's still conversation about ag. We'd like to say we support ag and
CTAHR is the seed for ag, you know, I think that's what we need to remember. And
should others pop up like they're doing now, then we need to be sure we do our due
diligence as to how credible they are in providing the kind of service that farmers need.
Especially if we're looking to new crops that's been talked about and resolutions that
we've passed through. We're gonna need some sort of guidance with research and
what have you. So I strongly advocate because personally we actually utilize CTAHR
and I would think the Maui farmers also utilize CTAHR to its fullest. Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. Members, any further discussion? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, for Director I guess, what is the...showing the
organization's annual agricultural charitable donations. What does that mean
exactly? So the organization, they have donors to their organization of at least $1,000
will qualify them also?
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: I believe that refers to a charitable organization that gives $1,000 of food
away. So let's say I started a charity and I give food to needy people. If that has a
value of $1,000 it's meant for someone like, an organization like that. Not what they
receive but they give away product -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What they produce to give.
MR. TAYLOR: --of equal value to $1,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay what they produce and then give -MR. TAYLOR: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --out -MR. TAYLOR: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --from that organization?
MR. TAYLOR: And, Madam Chair, I've asked Mr. Meyer, our Deputy Director, to come down.
He sees every single one of these. And he may be able to give some insight into is
there anything else that even comes close to this? Because he sees every one of these
applications. And I thought it might help to hear from him, his thoughts about
whether or not this is likely to be a growing problem or whether or not this is sort of
just a single item.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Mr. Meyer?
MR. MEYER: Thank you, Madam Chair. Paul Meyer, Deputy. Ladies and gentlemen, we've
been, I've been processing these ag applications every year for what, five years now.
And this is the only organization of its type that conducts ag research on an official
State and University of Hawaii sponsored basis. And it is true they had an ag rate
authorization going back into time. But when we looked at the ordinance the
only...they didn't meet the qualifications. And that's the reason as the Director says,
that we feel that an exception should be made and they should be called out as an
exception by name. But this is the only one we know of. The reason for this of course
is that most agriculture is conducted here on Maui with untreated surface water at a
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cost of 5 cents to say 50 cents per 1,000 gallons and to use treated potable water that
costs between 4 and $6 per 1,000. And put that treated potable water back on the
ground. And to charge people a dollar a thousand for that $6-a-thousand water is
very much a losing proposition. That's why it's in the Council's wisdom, as near as we
can tell, the ag water rates were put in place to promote agriculture, to incentivize as a
subsidy agriculture. But there were conditions. It was intended to support
commercial agriculture. It was not intended to support someone who had four ohana
dwellings and an avocado tree. So that's the reason as near as I can tell that the
Council put that $1,000 test as a test for commercial agriculture.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any further questions, Ms. Cochran, to Mr. Meyers or anybody
else?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Well, yeah, thank you, Mr. Meyer, for the historical
background on that. But, Chair, I guess just overall just since, you know, it's potable
Upcountry where that water is like worth more than gold. And using potable and
then, Chair, you know, getting cheaper ag rates for it not doing ag, not on ag land for
me just doesn't sit well overall. And as I mentioned, you know, to name specifically an
entity when there's others who and I know you aren't aware of any but as Mr. Couch
said, there's changes happening in our agricultural world here. And I can foresee
things and there are people that are looking, you know, looking to broaden the
horizons here. So and I understand, Chair, that it's something that we can always
revisit and we can always revamp and rewrite as we go along but, you know, I sure
would like to see that Board of Water Supply's I don't know recommendations or
suggestions, Mr. Taylor, that you were discussing, that they sort of been talking about
in the past. And I would prefer if we could, you know, sort of stall this for a moment
to see what that is and maybe incorporate it all into one nice pretty package. But
that's just my recommendation and my thoughts today, Chair. Just to put it out on
the table.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Ms. Cochran. And I think we all understand the point
that you're trying to make but it's my feeling that I think most of the Committee is
somewhere else. So Fm...if there's no further discussion, I'd like to make my
recommendation with the idea that this can be revisited and we will look at making
this kind of accommodation for others if there is a request to do that. So my
recommendation of course is that we approve the legislation before us. I need a
motion and Mr. Victorino, my Vice-Chair is not available today. So if someone else
wants to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I so move, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR BAISA: We have a motion by Ms. Crivello, a second by Mr. White. We're open to more
discussion.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Does that include file?
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Willenbrink, file?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes.
CHAIR BAISA: File, yeah? Yes. Further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, say
"aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR BAISA: Opposed "no."
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR BAISA: We have one, two, three, four...five "ayes," one "no," and one Member
excused. So the motion passes.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Baisa, and Councilmembers Carroll, Couch,
Crivello, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Cochran.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Committee. And would you guys like to take a little
break now before we get into the presentation? Or shall we just move ahead? Move
ahead? Okay. We're going to move ahead. Water Department, are you guys ready to
go with the presentation?

ITEM 6( 1): PRESENTATIONS:
PROCEDURES

COMMITTEE'S PRIORITIES AND

MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Madam Chair, we're ready.

-19-

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

February 17, 2016

CHAIR BAISA: Okay. We have Mr. Robert De Robles from the Department's Planning
Division and he's here to deliver a presentation on the leak detection program. Any
opening remarks, Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: I just want to thank you, Madam Chair, for the opportunity to put on this
presentation. As you mentioned earlier, the Council's been supportive over the past
couple of years in budget, allocating money to buy equipment as well as two positions.
So we're gonna talk about what we're doing with that. In general, leak detection is a
way to save water, save money, and find problems before they happen. And
Mr. De Robles is gonna go through the mechanics of what we're doing and what the
future looks like.
CHAIR BAISA: And we're very excited to have him here today. You know, a lot of us have
seen this beautiful vehicle and if you'll turn the cover of your packet you'll see a
picture of it. I've seen it and it's kinda impressive so tell us all about it.
MR. DE ROBLES: Good morning, Madam Chair Baisa and Councilmembers. Thank you for
having me. My name is Robert De Robles. I'm with the Water Resources and
Planning. This morning I'm gonna be talking to you about the Maui Island Water Leak
Detection Program we started mid-2015. So on the agenda there's gonna be 11 parts.
It's kinda missing part 11 there. But the parts include leak detection basics, locations
for leak detection, leak detection...the leak detection approach, leak detection lifecycle
and key process analysis, leak detection methodology, suspected leaks in the built
environment, selecting priority areas, equipment types, our current leak detection GIS
mapping, and water audit to better understand water loss. And No. 11, which doesn't
show is just conclusion. So part one, leak detection basics. Water leaks are common
in water delivery systems and becomes more frequent as the system ages. Today most
water systems between 40 to 80 years of age and vary age throughout the United
States, we're not an exception. The average annual water loss due to leaks can range
from between 5 percent to more than 30 percent based on AWWA findings. And a
collaborative effort and part of a greater conservation push is required for this leak
detection program to succeed. Leak detection requires system information and
knowledge. Leak detection equipment is only a vital tool for investigation which I'll
explain that reason why. And there are various types of issues that can cause water
leaks. So as you can see here, our ten-year monthly average billing. DWS has made
progress with its conservation efforts so far. As you can see probably beginning 201112 we started implementing more of a conservation effort in terms of some of the
things we've initiated. And there's been a decline in our 12-month average billing over
the last...since around there, 2013. So another thing that we were able to accomplish
mid last year to this year was a P.E. Driscoll Service Lateral Replacement. This leak
detection program initiated a 1 million service lateral replacement project currently in
the contract design phrase. So the contracts have been bid out and they're currently
designing the project right now. And it's in the Waiehu Subdivision. As you can see
it's an entire street. Some of you might not be familiar with P.E. Driscoll but there
have been a lot of leaks and we went to these areas, prioritized areas to look for and
we verified there was several leaks in this area. And instead of doing it one by one we
decided just to replace the entire street 'cause it was just leaking everywhere there.
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Locations for leak detection are fire hydrants, meters, valves and fittings, service lines,
main lines, crossings and bridges, water tanks and reservoirs, and of course reports
from customers and their outlets. Now leaks usually could start, usually starts with
corrosion. So many pipe ruptures start as small corrosion leaks as you can see here,
this chemical reaction and just rust basically from being under the ground. Here's
some photos, a leak detection program can help find leaks like these. As you can see
in the top left there, just corrosion, rust. And that could happen, some kind of
geological event or maybe just natural causes could cause a pipe to break. Or maybe
even rocks or some kind of electromagnetic, you know, pulse in the ground or
something that could cause anything, any of these leaks to happen. Joints, it
happens in joints and valves.
CHAIR BAISA: Robert, hang on for a second. Members, if you see something and wanna ask
a question please stop me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah. So that because if we wait '61 the end we won't remember what we
saw. Did you have a question, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR BAISA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Back at the P.E. Driscoll, so you're saying and from the picture
it looks like, everything or most of the stuff now is, looks like iron or galvanized?
MR. DE ROBLES: No. The P.E. Driscoll replacement program was on the service laterals,
not on the main. It was at the service laterals, and those were all P.E. Driscoll.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They are P.E. Driscoll now -MR. DE ROBLES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and you're replacing 'em with the stuff that's failing?
MR. DE ROBLES: No. We're replacing it with, I don't know what they're replacing, they're
designing that right now. But they're bringing it to Code so it's best part of the design
process.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so you're not replacing it with P.E. Driscoll -MR. DE ROBLES: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you're replacing it with something else? Okay.
MR. DE ROBLES: P.E. Driscoll replacement.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then on the leak detection with all the leaks?
MR. DE ROBLES: Copper. Pardon, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The one with all the leaks that we just left.
MR. DE ROBLES: The picture?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. DE ROBLES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You know, I know on certain things they have certain metal
things like ships and whatnot. They have, what do they call a sacrificial or I forgot
what they call it. They have... they put a lump of metal to have that be the one that's
corroded and whatnot. Can you do that with water pipes or is that, is it so vast that
you can't do it?
MR. TAYLOR: Now for the...I knew somebody was gonna bring up something so we can have
the engineering portion of the presentation which I know you all live for.
CHAIR BAISA: You go, Mr. Taylor, it's your turn.
MR. TAYLOR: If you look at some of these pictures you see in the upper right, that's how
pipe rusts. There's essentially a little battery that's made between the soil and the
pipe and it's right at the anode that it rusts. What you're talking about is cathodic
protection where is you put something to rust so what you want, doesn't rust. That's
what they do on ships.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: So pipe, you tend to get these little circuits every so often, they're not
everywhere. The problem is pipe comes in 20-foot lengths and the gasket does not
conduct electricity so each one would have to have its own. The other thing you can
do is you can invoke current through the entire thing reversing the normal current to
put enough current so it doesn't rust. But now all of a sudden you've got this whole
other engineering problem. What we do is in our industry, we wrap them with plastic
to keep this from happening. If that plastic breaks, if when it was put in they didn't
put the plastic, et cetera, you can still have these things happening. Can you go to the
next slide? What's important to note is, see in the lower left, you just see that little
rust hole same with the lower right. The rest of the pipe is in really good shape. This
is because of the reason it corrodes is most of your pipe's in good shape and every so
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often you get this hole. And that hole gets bigger and bigger and then it bursts. It's
why you see, in Honolulu these pipes bursting but they're just fixing 'em, they're not
replacing the whole pipe line because the rest of it's in good shape. The leak detection
program can find them when they look like this before they get bigger and burst. But
that's a key is most of the pipe's in good shape, you've just got these sections, these
individual points here and there where it's corroding. But there's no way to calculate
where those are gonna be. It has more to do with the metallurgy of the pipe, little
inconsistencies plus the soil, et cetera, et cetera. There is no way to predict. It's not
always at exactly, you know, 31 feet or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Is this more common where there's salt?
MR. TAYLOR: The wet/dry cycle of tides makes it worse. Wet/dry with salt water. But it's
really about whatever the soil conditions are. And you can have a dry place where it's
still happening.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay, thank you. Anybody else? No? Okay moving on.
MR. DE ROBLES: So early detection can prevent catastrophic breaks like this is what the
Director was mentioning. So leak detection approach, this is a proactive approach
and helps scope out technical solutions if a reactive approach is warranted.
Developed, managed and coordinated by DWS, Water Resources and Planning
Department. The leak detection will be executed by two trained pipefitters managed
by field operations supervisors, and improvements to the program will be through a
collaborative effort and the sharing of knowledge and information. So before this was
started I looked into all the major stakeholders who would be involved in the leak
detection program. You can see them on the left therein column. It's very small but
for me it's supposed to be larger.
CHAIR BAISA: Kupuna font, we can't read.
MR. DE ROBLES: Yeah I understand. I just wanted to show you that we did a lifecycle, a
key process analysis to figure out the processes involved to execute the leak detection
program. So it's just basically just comes around and loops around all the
information and through consultation through various departments who would be
involved in this program. Methodological steps would be to gather pertinent
information about DWS system, collect new data and reconcile previous datasets
collected, analyze the data, identify system issues from consulting with stakeholders,
identify DWS priority areas for leak detection, identify leak detection constraints, train
field leak detectors which is an ongoing process, conduct district-by-district leak
detection, record and map leak detection sites and detected leaks, troubleshoot leak
detection approach and equipment issues which is very common, identify and
implement improvements needed for leak detection, communicate informed
improvement solutions to stop or prevent water leaks, and then restart the
methodology once again. So suspected leaks in the built environment. Usually wet
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spots in landscaped areas and pooling of water, very vibrant vegetation in normal
drier, unoccupied locations, a notable drop in water pressure, flow volume, or tank
levels, heaving or cracking of paved areas, sinkholes or potholes, uneven floor grading
or leaning of a structure, and unexplained billing changes over several billing cycles.
This was a picture taken actually several months ago. The 18-inch main that burst
and this was one...this was actually not located at the site where it burst, it was a
little distance from it. Because once that pipe burst in that area, it set a chain
reaction. So this was going on for a few days. There was supposed to be a video but it
didn't work. Selecting priority areas. Largest consumption areas for the most services
and largest reported leaks, usually by customers and through work orders we go
through with field operations, suspected areas with potential to recoup non-revenue
loss, and areas largely built with pipe materials prone to breaking, such as P.E.
Driscoll we were talking about, asbestos concrete or AC pipes, cast iron, and
galvanized, areas where unexpected pressure flux have caused pipe breaks, and
recommendations from DWS engineers and field operations supervisors. So, the type
of equipment we're looking at is basically, there's basically three types but we use
mostly two. External to pipe, remote sensing is something we don't really use. That's
more ground penetrating radar and things like that. Kinda hard in our geology. What
we use is mostly external to pipe, connected. As you can see there, the pictures show
correlators, is what they call, to put sensors on two ends and listen with a listening
device or the computer actually compiles all the information from those little sensors
you see on the top right. And over a course of, let's say 24 hours or sooner, a
computer could narrow it down where there are any sound anomalies occurring
between the pipe. And kinda, it doesn't tell you the exact location of the leak but it
could approximate. So it's not an exact science so it takes a lot of practice and a lot of
troubleshooting to do this. And then on the bottom left there, you can see that's a
more simple form. You just drop a little magnet onto the valve or that's in the ground
and listen for any sound, any sounds that may indicate a leak. Now there's sound
files, there's so many different types of sounds to listen to 'cause you could get false
negatives. So it takes a lot of practice. That's why we have trained pipefitters who are
on the leak detection program. And then of course there's internal to pipe, H2 gas
which is not something that's commonly used because you have to use gas that goes
into the pipe and then use devices to detect if the gas is leaking somewhere along that
pipe. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, real quick.
CHAIR BALSA: Sure, go ahead, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The H2 gas thing, is there...there's no contamination or
residue left within the pipe to contaminate the water that will flow through it?
MR. DE ROBLES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
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MR. DE ROBLES: No. There's nothing left. I mean that's something I don't have any
experience with. It's not very common, commonly used but it's not something that we
use today either as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Just, you know I mean, just checking if what you're
utilizing goes in and somehow leaves some, I don't know, some type of residue. Now
you're gonna have water flush through to someone's tap.
MR. DE ROBLES: Right. The scope of actual application of it would have to be investigated
and determined if it would be safe but it's a common practice elsewhere but not, we
haven't used it here.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
MR. DE ROBLES: Yeah. Right. Ours is like I said, all external to the pipe.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. DE ROBLES: So the current leak detection GIS mapping system. So what we did is we
compiled the locations of all the found leaks in, on the island. And you can see them
in 2015, it started about September, 2015. And all the red dots there were the leaks
detected. Mostly in the Central District and in Kihei. And all the green you see there
is the progress of where they've looked for leaks.
CHAIR BAISA: So when you find them, what happens? Are they repaired or are they put on
some kind of a list to be repaired or...
MR. DE ROBLES: Well that's up to the...
CHAIR BAISA: It's up to the boss.
MR. DE ROBLES: Yeah, it's up to the boss.
CHAIR BAISA: Well we'll ask Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Because that's not covered, I'll just address that right now. We are finding
many, many, many more leaks that our crews can possibly get to. So we are keeping
a database, we're building a list of where these are. We will be requesting some more
funds for outside contractors to attack some of these on a priority basis, but we are,
as we're doing with a lot of other things, recognizing a lot more problems than we have
resources to get to. We could...our crews now, their priorities are to take leaks that
are reported and breaks that are reported by customers and get those fixed. Ideally
we'd be sending crews to deal with these but we are barely able to keep up with our
trouble calls much less these that aren't yet trouble calls. We could probably use a
whole crew that would do nothing but attack these and it would probably be a couple
of years. So there is much, much more work than we have resources to get to. Over
the long term probably almost every one of these will be dug up at one point, whether
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we dig them up proactively or whether it breaks and we, a trouble call, we now have
this resource problem that we're identifying problems, how are we going to get to
them. But that's not an issue for this presentation. It's probably more of an issue
that we'll take up in budget this year. So I'll leave it so we have something to talk
about then.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. So now when we see the request for we need more money to fix
leaks we know what we're talking about. That was not our intent today but it seems
to be going there. Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. So you have all these leaks that like
you said, you wanna send somebody out to go to. He's hiding behind Ms. Oana there.
Do you have a, can you...with this method of detecting leaks can you determine how
much water we ultimately will be saving by fixing all these leaks?
MR. DE ROBLES: Well this leak detection program, it does, it helps narrow it down where
the leaks are occurring because it's multiple steps. One of the steps is to actually do a
water audit which I'll explain. That's the accounting part of...right. Yeah there is, by
the size of the pipe and also where it's located based on the water pressure and such.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So in that picture that had the little puka where the water is
coming out, is there a, can you by sight estimate if that were to go on for a month how
much water we would lose kinda thing?
MR. DE ROBLES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh you can?
MR. DE ROBLES: We can do a calculation like that. But if it's a rough calculation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
MR. DE ROBLES: Yeah. Because some of the leaks don't show themselves and you would
have to dig it up in order to actually make a evaluation on how much water is actually
being lost.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: From the sound.
MR. DE ROBLES: From the sound. No, well you can, I mean, just you would...it really...if
it's a large rupture you could have a better understanding of the kinda flow you're
talking about. But when it's underground and it costs money to dig -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. DE ROBLES: --you just kinda have to guess.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood. And one of the reasons I'm asking this is because
if it's significant enough, I mean any water loss is significant. But if you get enough of
these red dots everywhere versus the cost it would be to hire in somebody and clear all
that out, it would help in the budget session to say hey, look we're gonna save
$1 million and so many million gallons a day if we spend however much to fix those
leaks.
MR. TAYLOR: Member Couch, the struggle we have is, as Mr. De Robles was saying is we
can do sort of an engineering calculation of how much water it is based on the
pressure and the size hole that we're guessing. But even a small difference in the size
hole, from an eighth inch to a quarter inch has an enormous range of the actual
volume coming out. The data we're getting from the sound doesn't give us enough
information to judge that. It would really just be a guess on the hole. Leaks are
probably fitting into sort of two categories. In real general terms either the joint is
leaking...let's say the joint wasn't connecting properly and it will stay that way forever.
Won't get any worse, won't get any better. But if it's a rust hole it's going to get worse.
So from a cost standpoint, if you look over the next 20 years every single one of these
that's caused by rust which is gonna be most of them, is going to be dug up. It's
either going to be dug up by a crew that we send proactively or it's going to be dug up
by an emergency call in the middle of the night on overtime. Even without running
any numbers I can tell you that it's cheaper to just get to them rather than having
them pop up every week here and there on overtime. Because we are gonna dig up
every one of those over the next two decades. So I think that's the way I would
approach cost is that a crew's gonna go out and do it. Are we gonna do it on straight
time or we gonna do it on overtime. That's it.
CHAIR BAISA: Right. And for me what is even more important is the conservation. You
know, water is being lost and we're always worrying about where we gonna get more.
Well a lot of it could be replaced if we fix all these leaks. Because if the water is
running God knows where, we're having to have more water to use. And so for me this
is really important. I think this is a major cost item is we cannot have a whole lot of
lost water. And I think this leak detection thing is really, really important but we gotta
fix it. You know, there's no point in knowing and turning the other way. You've gotta
deal with it. So this is important and that's why I wanted us to take a look at this
today and see this is a real concern. Go ahead, sir.
MR. DE ROBLES: So yeah just to add to that as well, I mean when I mentioned the P.E.
Driscoll issue, that...those leaks have been going on for a really long time. What we
did...I mean over the entire island where P.E. Driscoll was installed. So it's nothing
new so you could imagine it's been leaking for a long time. And if you consolidate all
the little leaks where it's been occurring, you could imagine how much loss was
occurring. That's why we just decided to do the entire street. And that was, you
know, money constraints. We could've done a lot more than that. But it's not just
rust, although it is very valid, the rusts do occur. But the P.E. Driscoll was one thing
that's been happening.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR BAISA: I think this is really important, what we're talking about today because, you
know, we're also trying to do education this year. And, you know, if the public sees
their water bill go from what it normally is to exorbitant amount, kinda take a look in
your yard and see if you can find a squishy area or if the grass is extra green or
something. You may have a problem. And it's happened with us so I know and it
makes a huge difference.
MR. DE ROBLES: And it's not just the pipes themselves, the fittings -CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
MR. DE ROBLES: --valves, you know, areas where two pipes come together usually could
leak as well. So you know, you have to choose and systematically attack where these
leaks could occur and it's a long, long term but, you know, project to try to isolate all
the leaks and replace things as, when you need to.
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Cochran, your turn to say something.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah I was looking at the map so it looks like you did work
in Lahaina and we got a clean bill of health. No leaks in Lahaina so far?
MR. DE ROBLES: No. So far, no, I mean not yet. I mean the guys are out every day doing
leak detection and...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wow very...I'm surprised because so salty in Lahaina. I
mean you're not salty, I'm just saying that it's salty out there in Lahaina.
CHAIR BAISA: Salty people in Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: In West Maui right? Near ocean and stuff.
MR. DE ROBLES: I was surprised as well. I was surprised.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. I know we have water source out in the Honolua
area. Don't we run a Driscoll through the gulches through up and down and around
and everything?
MR. DE ROBLES: We do. And there are...I'm sorry, I'll let you lead to your question.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And well because I live there and have been in the back
valleys and what have you, have seen our black pipes squirting water everywhere.
Would you like me to plug those as I find them? Anyways...
MR. DE ROBLES: What was your question then?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well just are we looking at those and of course, you know,
maintaining and up keeping and they're kinda tucked away and in cracks and crevices
and things.
MR. TAYLOR: We try to fix things as they break. One nice thing about aboveground lines is
that we don't need the leak detection equipment to find them. And, I'm not, you know,
joking but in Hana just, you know, I remember when I first started and I got my first
tour of the Hana system. When I had driven in Hana along the coastal road, that out
of the corner of my eye in the past I thought was electrical conduit, I didn't know that
that was the waterline hanging in the trees, and our crews have since buried those.
CHAIR BAISA: In the trees?
MR. TAYLOR: But you think about it, I kinda liked it when it was in the trees because you
know when it's leaking. And so there is something nice. There are still a number of
aboveground water lines that we have and we don't need the leak detection equipment
to find those leaks. But that is not our standard. We're trying to bury things, but
lines like Honokohau Valley are easy to find the leaks. It's hard to protect them from
people illegally tapping them and causing leaks because they are exposed, but from a
leak detection standpoint obviously you can find them.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And that too was a point, Chair, that there's a lot of
vandalism that happen when obviously they're visible and people can access them the
way, as they're exposed. And my other thing I noticed, yeah I didn't see Hana having
any progress there. So as, I just visited and went to go find that pipe running through
the trees but as you said, you folks buried it so you can't see it anymore. Trying to
figure out, you know, the waterline system to the landfill there. And so you folks are
going to Hana or have not yet?
MR. DE ROBLES: I have two things to add. One of the things when you were mentioning on
the West Side. A lot of those lines is P.E. lines along the surface, they're really
inaccessible, a lot of them are inaccessible. It goes through the mountains and so on
and so forth. So we could just figure out if there are leaks by reports because the
pressure would just drop if there was a major leak on one of those Driscoll. But if you
go up there you see just sheer cliffs or going off sheer cliffs. You don't know where it's
going and I don't know if our leak detector crew could actually do that, I mean liability
issues. But something we are looking into, trying to figure out. In Hana it's another
place we would end up looking but then it's also inaccessible. A lot of the... and we
can't do leak detection on non-metallic pipes at this point. We don't have the
equipment for that. So visual reports, things like that we have to rely on because the
equipment is only one portion of the investigation tool, right? So for right now we're
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looking at viable options on how to do that especially for places where lines just snake
through the mountain. But yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Anybody else? Go ahead, sir.
MR. DE ROBLES: So this was started in 2015, mid-2015, and 2015-2016 right now they
started looking a little bit more in Upcountry as you can see. And this one doesn't
include what was there before but you can see so there are leaks around, they're
occurring and we have to rely on visual inspection as well, not just using the
equipment. One thing to keep in mind is that the leak detection crew, they're
experienced pipefitters. They know what to look for, they just don't use the equipment
and just depend on sound and possible leak sounds that they hear. They actually
have to make a determination, professional determination if that is the case. So it's
difficult and, you know, the technique, it could be improved. It will be improved over
the course of time. They'll just get better at it and of course, once they do get better at
it they're just gonna end up finding more leaks. So now here we are on the water
audit to better understand losses. This is what I was mentioning earlier. Where the
water distribution system leak and the contribution of water accounting data from the
following because we, when we look at all the system leaks we also have to look at all
the possible loss that we're incurring from things that are not being reported and
accounted for. And that includes water supplied, billed metered, billed unmetered,
unbilled metered, and unbilled unmetered. Some of these, when we were talking to
DOT, Department of Transportation, the Fire Department, a lot of operations that are
occurring that we'd never really had a good accounting for how much water was being
used and having a central database to be able to do a water audit. Once we do that,
you know, well be able to determine just how much, it would take away some of the
percentage deviation from the actual leaks that are occurring in the system. As you
can see there, on that hydrant that's an actual I guess, I don't know what they would
call that, Dave? They'd call that a...they're tapping into that hydrant there and that's
a meter attached to that hydrant. Yeah temporary. But that's, when you go to that
site it doesn't look like it was very temporary. It's been there for a long time I think
and so we don't know how accurate that meter is and we don't know how much water
has been taken from that one hydrant alone. That's an example of what I'm saying
like we need to have a better accounting 'cause if thousands of gallons coming out of
there every day then it matters. We have tens of thousands of fire hydrants. So in
conclusion, the leak detection is not a solution for an aging water delivery system; it's
a proactive approach really to better justify smaller reactive approaches to recoup
non-revenue water loss. The leak detection program could only help delay the
eventual need to make larger, more comprehensive CIP investments. And the leak
detection program can only work efficiently as part of a concerted effort. And a leak
detection program needs the support of an island-wide water audit. Oh sorry, thank
you.
CHAIR BAISA: You mentioned the need, the support of an island-wide water audit.
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MR. DE ROBLES: Correct, ma'am.
CHAIR BAISA: Can you explain further about how that audit happens. Is it happening? Is
there a request to do it?
MR. DE ROBLES: Yes, ma'am, I'll explain it right here. I'll go back to this. So this water
audit like I was mentioning, it incorporates all of the accounted for water and
unaccounted for water that is metered or unmetered and authorized and
unauthorized. So all the departments using water should be taking an accounting of
how much water they're using from the water system. It should be metered so we
could kind of understand how much we're losing in actuality. Because just because
we're detecting leaks we don't know, maybe a lot of the water are being lost by just not
accounting for it. So a water audit is a systematic kind of plugging in of data into a
system so we can kinda calculate the percentage lost from the entire system.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Members... Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if that's the case, is there...I mean is that part of the
day-to-day operations or is that something on top of the day-to-day operations or is
that something you would have to hire outside to do?
MR. DE ROBLES: No, we've already started the water audit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. DE ROBLES: So it also includes data from production and billing and we have to
reconcile that.
MR. TAYLOR: And if I can add, it is something...part of this program came out of a rough
water audit that our staff did a number of years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: We have very good meters on our wells and our treatment plants. So we have
a very reliable number of how much volume we're putting into each system. Then we
have meters on each customer so we know how much is coming out and there's a
difference. The difference between that is either meters that are not working right,
leaks, or people stealing water, people using water without paying for it. What Robert
called non-revenue water, unaccounted for water, those terms are used sort of
interchangeably. So once you know there's a difference between what you're putting
in and what you're billing for, what is that difference? And then staff can go hunt that
down as far as how, like for example if the Fire Department uses water for training
purposes and they're not monitoring that. You know, can we estimate that to get a
better idea of how much is it, where is it? Even just getting reports from them that
we're working with. Just let us know just so we can at least account for it in our
numbers. Things like that are part of the water audit. So that's something that staff
is undertaking to try and get a better idea of this. Something you might see in the
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future is some capital requests to put some meters here and there within the water
system. We have meters at the front end and at the back end only. We don't have any
intermediate meters. So there's really no way to know hey is the water being lost at
the front end of the system or the backend of the system. By strategically placing
some permanent meters within the system you can at least start narrowing down
which areas are likely to have more leaks or unaccounted for water. So we have what
we have, we're doing the best we can with the data we have but it's not like what you
see in the movies where there's gauges every 100 feet and we know exactly what's
happening at all points of the system. It just doesn't work that way. So that's why
we're taking this sort of roundabout approach to try to do this without the huge
expenditure of putting in meters, you know, every 100 feet.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that begs the question and I don't know if you have that
number off the top of your head. You said here's what we bill, here's what we show
going out. Do we know what that number is?
MR. TAYLOR: If you know it, just ranges.
MR. DE ROBLES: The ranges we probably know. But we use SCADA. A lot of the water
that's going in we use...we could get SCADA numbers and pull those numbers out.
Now...yeah, and I don't know the numbers definite. I mean it could change.
MR. TAYLOR: AWWA recommends that a good system is about 10 percent unaccounted for.
It's probably as good as you can get, 10 or 12 or something like that. Ours is
significantly more let me just say that. And so there is plenty to find.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair and Department. So with the upcoming
budget around the corner, just wondering if there's anything that you'd like to share at
this point in time in relation to your one bullet point mentioning more comprehensive
and CIP investments. You know, must...this leak detection is just delaying the
eventual cost in that area so is there something online coming to us in the next month
or so that we might need to be aware of now to help you here?
MR. TAYLOR: Well as you all know, the Mayor will transmit the budget on March 25th or
before. And we... Chair Baisa, has I think roughly prescheduled one of the WRC
meetings in the future shortly before that for us to give usually a heads up about what
to expect in budget. And the Mayor is usually very cooperative with letting me explain
to you what's going to be in the budget. That is our intention to do again this year.
So over the next month or so we'll probably have more information about what to
expect in the budget.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Our March 16th agenda will be a presentation by the Water Department of
what they plan to come and ask us in the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Just so that we have a heads-up so when we get to budget it won't be so
difficult.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Yeah, thank you. That's very helpful during our
deliberations for budget. But, Director, you mentioned this intermediate meter,
permanent meter thing to try and track what's the loss between the input and the
output area. And where do you strategically place these from source to the user and
in...I don't, how does that work and what is that?
MR. DE ROBLES: That's called sub-district metering or district metering, we don't have that
today. A lot of more developed urban environments incorporate it just to be able to
figure out what's happening in-between. And that's what the Director's talking about,
district metering pretty much. And you could even do sub-district metering to figure
out what's going on in the middle. There are...we have been looking at some options
to do not district metering but more on the longer lines that are in unoccupied areas
because a lot of the pipes that we're talking about, the larger main pipes have no
access point for our leak detectors to access to determine if there are any leaks. So
and they can't walk miles and miles and miles through the field, the ag fields to
determine if there's a leak along those lines. So what you would have to do is install
meters in the beginning of the long sections and at the other end, to make it simple.
And you could kinda make a determination. Those meters have to be calibrated based
on, you know, the flow rates and such but once that's done you'll have a more
accurate accounting about what's happening inside the system. And you can possibly
link it to SCADA so everybody has a better accounting.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright very good. And, Chair, if there's no more discussion
for...can I ask for a point of personal privilege?
CHAIR BAISA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have a compliment for the Department -CHAIR BAISA: I'm sure they're happy to get it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and it's not on the agenda but it's in relation to our
Department of Water Supply commercial on the radio. And I mentioned the
definitions of our Hawaiian language words on it was incorrect. And I mentioned it to
Eva and I heard it the other day and yes it got corrected. So I wanna say thank you to
the Department. It was stating that waiwai meant law but yet kanawai means law so
it was all changed and I'm very happy now so thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Very good, Ms. Cochran. You know, it's always nice to see that we get a
result from making a phone call.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Well it took a little -CHAIR BAISA: Took a while.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but main thing it got done. So excellent, thank you,
Department.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Department. Members, any further discussion on the Leak
Detection Program? If not, then I will defer the matter without objection.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: MPV)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR BAISA: Because we'd like to kind of keep an eye on this one and see how it proceeds.
Members, that covers our agenda for today, and seeing no further discussion, I would
like to thank everyone who came today. I'd especially like to thank Mr. De Robles for
the presentation. We really appreciate the work on it, and thank the administrative
staff, as well as my Council Staff...my Council Services Staff, and thank you,
Members, very, very much for your attention and your time. I am so pleased with how
this Water Department...Water Committee is operating. I really appreciate all of your
support. So without further ado, I will adjourn the meeting. . . . (gavel). . .
ADJOURN:

10:30 a.m.
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